
Classification: Unrestricted 

 
 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Sharon Keenlyside 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

6 January 2020 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL to be held on Wednesday 15 January 2020 at 7.30 pm in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 August 2019 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   ACTIONS UPDATE  
 

 There are no action updates to report from the last meeting. 
 

5.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 13  
 

6.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Public Document Pack



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 
 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 

pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.  
 

7.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

8.   HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUSINESS PLAN (Pages 5 - 66) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) on the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan for consideration by the Panel. 
 

9.   PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR HOUSING PERIOD QUARTER TWO - 2019/20 
(Pages 67 - 72) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) providing a summary 
of the strategic key performance indicators (KPIs), and comments about 
performance by exception for Quarter Two 2019/20.  The KPIs are monitored 
monthly by Heads of Service. 
 

10.   UPDATE ON NOW HOUSING LIMITED  
 

 Presentation from the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) providing an 
update on the Council-owned housing company, Now Housing Limited. 
 

11.   HOUSING MAINTENANCE RE-PROCUREMENT  
 

 Presentation from the Head of Property Services (Housing) on the re-procurement 
of the housing maintenance contract. 
 

12.   WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 (Pages 73 - 74) 
 

 The pro-forma which sets out the Panel’s work programme has been updated 
since the last meeting to enable forward planning of items to be considered to take 
place.  
 

13.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

14.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 15 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraph 4 (consultations or negotiations relating to 



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

labour relations) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

PART II 
 

15.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors N.Pace (Chairman) 

J.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
M.Birleson 
E.Boulton 
M.Cook 
A.Dennis 
 

M.Holloway 
T.Jackson-Mynott 
R.Lass 
H.Quenet 
F.Thomson 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
To be appointed 
 
Independent Representatives 
 
R.Paris   

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Sharon 
Keenlyside, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Sian Chambers 
Executive Member: Cllr Nick Pace 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL 15 JANUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUSINESS PLAN 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan sets out the council’s strategic 
plan for managing and maintaining the council’s social housing stock. 

1.2 It sets out in detail the council’s short to medium term plans and priorities for its 
asset management and housing management services and provides a thirty year 
forecast on stock investment requirements and financial planning. 

1.3 This report was presented to Cabinet on 6 January and any changes 
recommended by Cabinet Housing Panel will be presented to Special Cabinet on 
21 January, in order for it to recommend to Council at its meeting on 3 February 
2020. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Cabinet Housing Panel to consider the Housing Revenue Business Plan 2020-
2050 and note that any comments will be returned to Special Cabinet on 21 
January 2020 for consideration, before final recommendations are made to Full 
Council for adoption. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Since the introduction in 2012 of the Housing Revenue Account self-financing 
arrangement, the council has had a greater degree of control over the use and 
management of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

3.2 The HRA Business Plan sets out the vision for the future of council housing in 
our Borough 

3.3 The thirty year Business Plan has been developed within the context of longer 
term strategic and resource planning process. 

3.4 The plan sets out how we will, through effective management and planning within 
the HRA, support the council’s wider strategic aim to meet housing need and to 
provide high quality homes. 

3.5 Council housing is managed by the Housing Operations service, in conjunction 
with the Property Services team, which oversees the repair, maintenance and 
investment needs of the homes.  The Community and Housing Strategy team 
supports these teams through developing strategy across all housing services. 

3.6 As at 31 March 2019, there were 7218 general needs properties, 1690 sheltered 
properties and 1303 leasehold flats within the HRA. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



- 2 - 

3.7 The HRA also contains three designated homeless hostels – at Howlands 
House, Hazelgrove House and Inspira House.  These sites comprise 21 shared 
flats (63 individual rooms) and 75 self-contained properties respectively 

3.8 There are 593 garages let within the HRA 

3.9 There are also a small number of properties owned within the HRA, but leased to 
other providers to provide specialist supported housing for adults with learning 
difficulties. 

3.10 Due to the Right to Buy, there are on average 40 homes sold annually.  However 
the council is replenishing stock through the Affordable Housing Programme, 
both through building new homes and acquiring homes on the open market.  The 
council’s current target is to maintain a stock of 9000 or more rented units within 
the HRA 

3.11 The key aims for the housing management services is to  

 maximise rental and other income 

 let properties as quickly as possible 

 ensure tenants have the necessary support and advice to manage their 
tenancy, and where there are support needs, live as independently as 
possible 

 robustly manage anti-social behaviour 

 offer tenants and leaseholders opportunities to get involved in the housing 
service and have their say 

3.12 The self-financing environment enables a pro-active approach to asset 
management planning.  An update Asset Management Strategy for the HRA is 
currently being prepared. 

3.13 In 2016 a stock condition validation exercise was carried out, which underpins 
the current strategy for investment in homes, to ensure they meet the Decent 
Homes Standard. The council reports nearly 100% compliance with the Decent 
Homes Standard.  The exceptions being 36 properties which are considered to 
be non-decent, but due to design are uneconomic to be made decent and 17 
refusals (where tenants have said they do not want the improvements) 

3.14 Page 27 of the draft Business Plan contains a table which sets out the stock 
investment requirements over the next thirty years.  Based on today’s values, just 
under £348 million investment is required over the thirty year plan period. 

3.15 The responsive repairs and void maintenance, together with the majority of 
planned investment work, is currently undertaken by Mears under a 15 year 
partnership contract.  The contract ends in October 2022, with no contractual 
opportunity to extend the term.  Re-procurement of the service is underway with 
a number of key milestones already met.  The timescale includes an eight month 
mobilisation/de-mobilisation period, which will be used to embed new processes 
and systems and to source and occupy new shared office premises, with the 
successful contractor. 

Page 6



- 3 - 

3.16 A Housing Delivery Strategy has been agreed, which sets out the proposals for a 
five year programme of direct development and property acquisitions. 

3.17 As part of the Affordable Housing Programme the council has already built 52 
properties, now managed within the HRA and also acquired a total of 212 
properties via the Open Market Purchase programme. 

3.18 We have plans in place to deliver around 340 new homes for the HRA in the next 
five years, with the team working on other schemes which will add to this 
programme.  Highlights being the redevelopment of Howlands House, Burfield 
Close and Minster Close – which will deliver over 200 new homes. 

Implications 

Legal Implication(s) 

3.19 The Council has various housing duties and powers, including duties and powers 
in relation to homelessness under Part VII of the Housing Act 1996. 

3.20 Section 167 of the Localism Act 2011 gave effect to Schedule 15 of that Act and, 
since the coming into force of Schedule 15, English local authorities have been 
required to be self-financing in relation to their housing stock, financing their 
housing stock from their own rents. 

3.21 Part 3 of the Business Plan identifies certain of the changes introduced by the 
Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 and the Housing and Planning Act 2016.  

3.22 It is not a legal requirement to produce an HRA Business Plan; however it is 
good practice and helps provide a good framework for long term strategic 
planning. 

4 Financial Implication(s) 

4.1 The Housing Revenue account is a ring-fenced account funded from dwelling 
rental income, which must demonstrate sustainability over the longer term. 

4.2 Part seven of the plan (pages 37-38), sets out the forecasts of the plan over the 
medium term, and demonstrates that plans will allow the council to maintain its 
minimum working balance requirements (5% of income).  

4.3 Also included in the plan (page 41), are key sensitivity tests applied to the 
business plan model. These tests demonstrate that the plan is resilient in the 
longer term to changes in market conditions.  

4.4 Appendix A and B of the Plan provide a snapshot of the medium term forecasts 
(years 1-5) and longer term forecasts (year 30). 

5 Risk Management Implications 

5.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

5.2 There are no risks related directly to this report.  There are strategic and 
operational risks mapped for all aspects of housing revenue account activities, 
which are monitored appropriately 

Page 7



- 4 - 

5.3 The production of the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan document is in 
itself a risk control, as it is a helpful tool to assist with strategic planning for the 
service and development of new homes. 

6 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

6.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report 

 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 This is a thirty year Business Plan, which sets out the strategic approach to the 
management of the council’s housing stock over that time period.  The Asset 
Management Strategy will include measures the council is and plans to take to 
reduce carbon emissions and to tackle fuel poverty.  The housing team are 
represented on the Corporate Climate Change group and are actively 
considering the challenges and potential solutions, both in relation to new 
developments and existing homes. 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no human resource implications arising from this report 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 Good quality housing is linked to improved health and well being 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no communication and engagement implications arising from this 
report. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The HRA Business Plan supports the council’s overall vision for the borough ‘to 
make Welwyn Hatfield a great place to live, work and study with a vibrant, 
growing economy’ 

12.2 The vision set out in the council’s Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
Strategy is ‘to provide local people with opportunities to access good quality 
homes which they can afford to live in and where they can enjoy settled, secure 
and healthy lives’.  The HRA Business Plan objectives help to meet the 
objectives which underpin these visions. 

12.3 Specific priorities are to ‘deliver more housing to meet the housing needs of local 
people’ and to ‘make the best use of housing in the borough’.  Both are key 
objectives set out in the Business Plan. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

Page 8



- 5 - 

13.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

Name of author Sian Chambers 
Title Head of Community and Housing Strategy 
Date 2 January 2020 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Appendices to be listed  

Draft Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

S
IA

N
 C

 
[T

yp
e yo

u
r ad

d
re

ss]  [T
yp

e
 yo

u
r p

h
o

n
e n

u
m

b
er] 

 [T
yp

e yo
u

r e-m
ail ad

d
ress]  

 

WHBC 

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT  

            30 YEAR BUSINESS PLAN  

2020 TO 2050 

Page 11



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 2  
 

Contents (Note – numbers to be 

completed once document is agreed) 
 

No table 

of 

contents 

entries 

found. 

Contents Page No. 

1 Introduction  

 Foreword  

 Background  

 Our Borough  

2 Local Housing Context  

 Council’s Vision and Values  

 Our Vision for Housing  

 Local Strategic Context  

 Housing Stock  

 General Needs  

 Sheltered Housing  

 Leasehold Flats  

 Temporary Accommodation  

 Stock Retention  

3 National Context  

 National Policy & External Factors  

 Welfare Reform and Work Act  

 Housing and Planning Act  

 Right to Buy  

 Housing White Paper  

 Housing Green Paper  

 Improving Access to Social Housing (DA)  

4 Our Housing Services  

 Housing Operations  

 Neighbourhood & Enforcement   

 Income and Leaseholder Management  

Page 12



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 3  

 Independent Living  

 Business Excellence  

 Operational Challenges  

5 Capital and Asset Management  

 The Asset Management Strategy  

 Decent Homes  

 Our Spend Requirements  

 Delivery of New Affordable Homes  

 Stock Redevelopment  

 Funding our Capital programme  

Part No. Contents 

 

Page No. 

6 Performance and Value for Money (VFM)  

 VFM  

 Efficiency  

 Performance Indicators  

 Performance Monitoring  

 Partnering Arrangements  

7 HRA Financial Projections   

 HRA Self-financing  

 Short- Medium Term Position  

 Treasury Management  

 Borrowing Requirement  

 Long-term Revenue forecasts  

 Key Assumptions  

 Sensitivities  

8 Current Key Risks and Opportunities  

 Key Risks  

 Change in Government Leadership  

 Government Rent Policy  

 Right to Buy & Sale of High Value Homes  

 Welfare Reform  

 Changes to Supported Housing Funding  

 Increased Demand for Housing  

 Homelessness  

 Housing Green Paper  

Page 13



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 4  
 

 Hackitt Review Consultation  

 Increased responsibility to victims of Domestic Abuse  

 Brexit  

 Opportunities  

 Supply of New Affordable housing  

 Invest in Existing stock  

 Supporting Tenants  

 Energy Efficiency  

9 Governance, Communication & Tenant Involvement  

 Governance  

 Cabinet  Housing Panel   

 Portfolio Holder  

 Tenant Engagement  

 Tenants Panel  

 Tenant Panel Sub-groups  

 Service User Surveys  

 Wider Consultation  

 Appendices  

A Key Performance Indicators  

B HRA Revenue Forecasts  

C Capital Forecasts & Financing  

D Housing Revenue Account Development  

   

  

Page 14



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 5  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Foreword 

 

Welcome to Welwyn Hatfield Borough council’s revised Housing Revenue Account 

(HRA) 30 year Business Plan. This Plan communicates a vision for the future of council 

housing in our Borough; setting out a pathway that continues to build on our successes, 

promotes innovation and delivers the best value for money. 

 

The HRA Business Plan has been developed within the context of a longer term strategic 

and resource planning process and against a backdrop of reduced funding, increasing 

demand and major National policy change. 

 

In this difficult and challenging environment, it has never been more important for the 

council to plan effectively; we continue to work smarter and more creatively in order to 

rise to the challenges relating to the management and maintenance of our housing 

assets and the delivery of more homes which local people can afford to live in. 

 

This plan provides the foundation upon which we will strive to achieve our strategic 

objective to meet housing need in the borough and provide high quality and cost 

effective services to our tenants and leaseholders 

 

 

 

 

 

Part 1 
Introduction 

 

Cllr Nick Pace 

Portfolio Holder 

Housing, Planning and 

Community 
 

Simone Chinman-Russell 

Corporate Director  

(Housing and Communities) 

Page 15



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 6  
 

 
Background 

 

Our HRA Business Plan sets out our strategic plan for managing and maintaining Welwyn 

Hatfield Borough Council’s social housing stock. It sets out in detail the council’s short to 

medium term plans and priorities for its housing and asset management services (five 

years) and provides a long term (30 year) forecast on stock investment and financial 

planning. 

 

Since the introduction in 2012 of Housing Revenue Account Self-Financing (which 

resulted in a loan settlement for us of £305M) the council has had a greater degree of 

control over the use and management of the HRA. Self-financing allowed decision 

making at a local level to drive planning for investment in housing stock and set 

spending priorities in line with local demand. 

 

However since that time councils have had to navigate a challenging environment of 

public spending cuts, increased demand and an unprecedented amount of national 

policy change. In particular the major change to the government’s rent setting policy 

for social housing, implemented via statute in 2016/17, which saw rents reduced by 1% 

annually for four years.  This has had a significant impact on the HRA’s long term Business 

Plan, meaning a loss of approximately £85m over the life of the Business Plan, taking 

account of the rent increases that were planned prior to the change. 

 

In the aftermath of the tragic Grenfell Tower Block fire, there is a renewed focus on 

social housing, in terms of safety, accountability and the rights of social tenants. The 

Housing green paper “A new deal for social housing” went out to consultation last year 

(Aug 2018).  The thrust of this presents a change in the way council’s will be expected to 

engage with tenants and the community.  There are also plans for increased fire 

protection and accountability for buildings from design and throughout occupation 

 

Nationally attention has returned to the country’s housing shortage and government 

has signaled a renewed support for local councils seeking to develop new homes. The 

2017 autumn budget announcement committed to creating 300,000 new homes a 

year, until 2020 (supported by £15.3 billion new financial support for house building over 

the next five years taking the total to at least £44 billion in grants, loans and guarantees). 

This includes £1.2 billion for the government to buy land to build more homes, and £2.7 

billion for infrastructure that will support housing. 

Page 16



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 7  

 

A further step towards this was the lifting of the cap on borrowing to help councils to 

develop new housing  

OUR BOROUGH 
 

Welwyn Hatfield is located centrally within Hertfordshire, covering an area of 

approximately 130 square kilometers. The borough is bordered by Hertsmere to the 

south, St Albans to the west, North Hertfordshire to the north, and East Herts and 

Broxbourne to the east. The borough also has a short border with the London Borough of 

Enfield to the south.  Central London is around 11 miles south of the borough at its 

closest point. Around three-quarters of the borough is designated as part of the 

Metropolitan Green Belt. 

 

The borough has two main towns - Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield - as well as a 

number of large and small villages providing a mix of urban, suburban and rural areas. 

Each town and village has its own distinct identity and character - from roman origins in 

Welwyn to the 20th century garden city and new town growth of Welwyn Garden City 

and Hatfield. The two towns have a wide range of retail and services serving both the 

towns themselves and the wider local area, as well as large regionally-significant 

employment areas with a particular prevalence of large businesses and national 

headquarters. Most of the borough's HRA stock is within these two towns. 

 

The population of the borough at the 2011 Census was 110,500 people. This was an 

increase of 13.3% from the borough's population at the 2001Census, the fastest rate of 

growth of any of the districts in Hertfordshire. There continues to be a significant 

shortage in the supply and availability for homes to rent and homelessness is increasing. 

 

Therefore a key objective of the council, supported through the HRA Business Plan is to 

continue to construct and acquire housing for social rented housing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 8  
 

 

 

 

 

The Council’s Vision & Values 
The HRA Business Plan supports the council’s overall vision for the borough “To make Welwyn 

Hatfield a great place to live, work and study with a vibrant, growing economy” and the key 

objectives for achieving the vision: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Everything we do is under-pinned by the council’s values.  Our values demonstrate what is 

important to us in our dealings with residents, businesses, partners and staff.  These are: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Vision For Housing: 

 

This is set out in our Housing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and is:  

 

 

 

Part 2 
Local Housing Context 
 

The Council’s Values 

 Integrity 

We will be honest, clear and consistent about what we do 

 Fairness 

We will be fair in our policies and decision making, listening to the views and 

feedback we receive 

 Transparency 

We will be approachable, accountable and transparent in the way we 

communicate and conduct our business 

 Respect 

We will have respect for residents, businesses, partners and employees. 

 Responsive 

We will ensure we respond to internal and external influences on services by 

adapting them to meet changing need 

 Transparent 

We will be approachable, accountable and open in the way we 

communicate and conduct our business 

Council Priorities 

 Our Community 

 Our Environment 

 Our Housing 

 Our Economy 

 Our Council 

These priorities represent the challenges faced by the council as it seeks to improve local 

quality of life for everyone who lives, works or visits the borough. 

Page 18



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 9  

 

Our Vision for Housing: 

is set out in our Housing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy  

 

 

d 

 

 

 

 

The following priorities have been agreed: 

 Deliver More Housing to Meet the Needs of Local People. 

 Make the Best Use of Housing in the Borough 

 Meeting the Housing Needs of Older and Vulnerable People 

 Improving Access to and Maintaining Standards in the Rented Sector 

 

The HRA business plan supports our vision for housing which is implemented through our 

Annual Service Delivery Plan and a number of other polices and local strategies, set out in 

the diagram below. 

 

 

 

 

National Policy WHBC Business Plan  

Housing & 
Homelessness 

Strategy 2019-2024 

HRA Business Plan 

Affordable Housing 
Programme 

Tenancy Strategy 

WHBC Asset 
Management 

Strategy 

Older Person's 
Housing Strategy 

Housing Allocations 
Policy 

Rent policy 

Housing Delivery 
Plan 

The Local Plan 

& SHMA 

Strategic Context 

To provide local people with opportunities to access good quality, 

homes which they can afford to live in and where they can enjoy 

settled, secure and healthy lives 

 

Page 19



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 10  
 

Housing Stock 
 

Effectively managing the business requires detailed and up to date intelligence on the 

housing stock. 

 

General Needs 
There are a total of 72181 general needs properties in Welwyn Hatfield’s housing stock, 

they are broken down into category in the table below. 

 

Housing / Bed Category Actual Stock 

Numbers 

Housing bed category Actual Stock 

Numbers 

As at 31/03/19 As at 31/03/19 

Houses   Flats   

1 Bed 12 Bedsit 167 

2 Bed 1070 1 Bed 975 

3 Bed 3756 2 Bed 642 

4 Bed 295 3 Bed 41 

5 Bed 11     

6 Bed 4     

Total houses 5148 Total Flats 1825 

Bungalows   Maisonettes   

1 Bed 42 1 Bed 3 

2 Bed 71 2 Bed 59 

3 Bed 1 3 Bed 69 

Total Bungalows 114   131 

 

 

 

 
                                                                        
1
 As at 31

st
 March 19 LAHS 

Page 20



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 11  

Sheltered Housing 
There are a total of 16902 properties in Welwyn Hatfield’s sheltered housing stock.  They 

are broken down into the following categories. 

Housing / Bed Category Actual Stock 

Numbers 

Housing bed category Actual Stock 

Numbers 

As at 31/03/19 As at 31/03/19 

Flats   Maisonettes   

1 Bed 505 1 Bed 0 

2 Bed 142 2 Bed 1 

3 Bed 1 3 Bed 0 

Total Flats 648 Total Maisonettes 1 

Bungalows     

Bedsit 4   

1 Bed 358   

2 Bed 675   

3 Bed 4   

Total Bungalows 1041   

 

Leasehold Flats 
The Housing Revenue Account maintains the freehold for a number of flats sold with 

long leases under the right to buy scheme. We continue to provide services to these 

properties such as repairs, services for shared facilities and enhancement of communal 

areas. 

 

The council holds the freehold and manages the leases on 1303 leasehold flats in the 

borough as at 31st March 2019 

 

Temporary Accommodation  
The HRA account also contains the council’s temporary accommodation sites, 

providing interim accommodation to homeless households that the council has a duty 

to accommodate. These are  

 Howlands House, Welwyn Garden City, which consists of 21 units of shared 

accommodation, predominantly bedsits and with one 3 bed home. 

                                                                        
2
 As at 31

st
 March 2019 

Council Priorities   

 Our Community 

 Our Environment 

 Our Housing 

 Our Economy 

 Our Council 

These priorities represent the challenges faced by the council as it seeks to improve local 

quality of life for everyone who lives, works or visits the borough. 

Page 21



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 12  
 

 Hazelgrove House, Hatfield, consists of 21 units of accommodation a mix of 

bedsits, 1 bed and 2 bed units. 

 Inspira House, Welwyn Garden City, consists of 54 self-contained studio and one 

bedroom flats 

 

Demand for interim accommodation has increased over the last two years and move 

on to permanent solutions is slowing down. The council has had to review its use of 

temporary accommodation with a view to considering other options in its provision 

including use of the private rented sector to meet demand. 

 

The council is rolling out a modernisation programme, which will include the full 

redevelopment of a new and larger temporary accommodation provision at Howlands 

House and also a new, modern provision in Burfield Close, Hatfield.  

 

To meet the growing demand and accommodate the loss of temporary 

accommodation whilst Howlands House is being re-built, the council has acquired a 

newly built block of flats, Inspira House. This block provides 54 units of modern self-

contained accommodation.  In addition we are making use of vacant sites, such as 

Minster Close, for temporary accommodation – whilst plans are being prepared for 

redevelopment. 

 

Garages and Other  
The HRA account also generates income from the letting of 593 garages which are 

managed within the HRA. These are predominantly garages either adjacent to or 

attached to managed homes. 

 

The HRA also holds the freehold for several properties leased to 3rd party organisations 

who provide specialist housing management support to certain client groups – such as 

adults with learning difficulties. 

 

Stock Retention 
 

Over many years, the level of housing stock has declined through the Right to Buy.  The 

reduction in housing stock both impacts on the ability to meet local housing need, but 

also impacts on the potential benefits of economies of scale which can be achieved 

through a larger service. 

 

With the new powers afforded to it to develop new homes, the council’s aspiration is to 

achieve growth in its housing stock which is at least equivalent to the units lost via the 

Page 22



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 13  

Right to Buy – thus giving an overall target stock of 9000 rented homes.  The HRA is in a 

strong position to actively support the delivery of the affordable element of housing 

growth, with the council committed to additional borrowing to support this growth..  

 

 
Source Local Authority Housing Statistics Govt Return 

 

The downward trend was altered this year as sales slowed slightly, at the same time as 

new council homes were built, open market purchase targets were achieved and the 

council bought a block of new build homes, Inspira House.   

 
Source: Annual data from WCBC Home Ownership Team and Housing Development Team 

 

 

 

9129 

9058 

9005 

8947 

8904 

9011 

8750 

8800 

8850 

8900 

8950 

9000 

9050 

9100 

9150 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

WCBC Housing Stock Figures 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

6 year  Comparison of Sales and Acquisitions in 

our housing Stock 

Sold Open Market Purchases Council New build 

Page 23



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 14  
 

The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 
 

Our SHMA was first completed in 2014; it provides a single reference point on the 

conclusions of the housing need evidence and to take account of a wider housing 

market area, updated data sets and methodological guidance. 

 

The SHMA and the objectively assessed need (OAN) for housing has been updated over 

time to reflect the changing context for assessing housing needs. Analysis has indicated 

a need for 16,000 new homes over the Local Plan period. The size of homes required 

between 2013 and 2032 (SHMA Update 2017) to accommodate projected household 

growth is set out in the table below [1]:  

 

 

1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ beds 

13% 22% 41% 23% 

[1] This information, however is currently being re-assessed and may be subject to change 

 

 

The original SHMA identified that Welwyn Hatfield has historically a higher percentage of 

social rented housing than average. However, the significant affordability gap faced by 

a large section of our community supports the need for a stable or increasing level of 

social rented housing.  

 

The revision identified that an even more significant level in housing growth is required 

within the borough than as identified within the SHMA; particularly for older people, to 

respond to an ongoing increase in the ageing population as well as accommodating a 

predicted increase in younger new household formation. At the same time it continues 

to support an identified need, within that growth, for a supply of affordable housing.  

 

The Local Plan 
The council’s Local Plan, setting out the spatial planning framework for the long term 

development of the borough and the objectively assessed housing need, has been 

submitted and is undergoing public examination. With a revised OAN of 16,000 it is 

important that the opportunity is taken to utilise the financial resources of the HRA, to 

contribute towards enabling the affordable element of these additional homes.  Such 

an approach will add to the sustainability of the HRA going forward. 

 

  

Page 24



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 15  

 

 

 

 

 

National Policy & External Factors 
 

The HRA Business Plan is impacted by a number of external factors, the most significant 

of which are funding from Government and national policy change.  

 

There have been two key pieces of legislation introduced which have driven the most 

change: 

  

 Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 

 The Housing and Planning Act 2016 

 

Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 
The household benefit cap introduced in 2012 limited the total amount of benefit that 

any workless household can claim. Revised in 2016 it currently stands at a maximum of 

£20k per annum (outside of London). More people are impacted by the revised cap 

than were affected by the original. In our borough and at time of writing we have 

currently, 1253 tenants in the general needs stock being negatively impacted by the 

revised cap and one tenant in temporary accommodation. 

 

Other changes introduced via the Welfare Reform and Work Act have been: 

 working-age benefits frozen for four additional years 

 no automatic entitlement to Housing Benefit for 18-21 year olds  

 child related benefits from April 2017 to be limited to two children per household 

(those born post April 2017).  

 

In addition Universal Credit, the replacement benefit that combines tax credits, out of 

work benefits and housing benefit into one, continues to be rolled out across the 

country. It is currently in place in Welwyn Hatfield for all new claimants and households 

who have had a change circumstances.  
                                                                        
3
 As at 15/07/19 – Income Team data 

Part 3 
National Context 
 

Page 25



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 16  
 

 

Universal credit marks a significant change to traditional benefits.  The key difference is 

that it is paid directly to the applicant (including the housing element), monthly as 

opposed to fortnightly.  

 

Such a change has inevitably brought about some challenges for some tenants and 

consequently there has been an impact on some tenant’s ability to pay rent.  The 

council has, through the transformation programme, restructured its housing operations 

service and created an Income Team, who concentrate on supporting tenants to 

maximise the recovery of rent.  This focus enables a greater level of advice and support 

to be provided to tenants who are struggling.  The council also delivers a Tenancy 

Support Service, whereby more intensive support is provided for tenants who require it.  

In addition, we commission a money advice service through the Citizen Advice, 

whereby tenants can benefit from a direct referral to a Money Advisor. 

 

 

Housing and Planning Act 2016 
Social housing rents have been reduced by 1% annually by Government for four years 

commencing in April 2016.   The rent reduction locally means that by Year Five (2020) 

rents will be approximately 19.7% lower than previous projections.  The value of the four-

year 1% rent reduction is £85.5m.  As a result, the date for repayment of some of the 

debt, associated with the original self-financing deal, has been re-forecast to a later 

date. The government has recently announced that this rent reduction policy will end in 

2020/21, and will revert back to Consumer Price Index (CPI) +1% from 2020 onwards for 

a period of 5 years. 

 

Right to Buy 
The right to buy your council homes was introduced in the 1980s, but since 2012 there 

have been several changes made by successive Governments to introduce measures 

to incentivise more council tenants to exercise their Right to Buy. This has included 

increasing the discount to a maximum of £100,000 in some areas and reducing the 

tenancy time allowed to qualify for the discount from five years to three years. 

 

In conjunction with this change, the government introduced a scheme whereby the 

council could retain the majority of Right to Buy funds in order to invest in the delivery of 

new affordable homes. 

 

The council signed this agreement in September 2012 and to date has delivered over 

330 properties via construction, grant funding and acquisition.  

Page 26



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 17  

 

Housing White Paper 
The government produced a housing white paper at the start of 2017 titled ‘fixing our 

broken housing market’ which makes housebuilding a priority, with a focus on improving 

the planning process, land availability and construction skills shortages.  It requires 

councils to continue to find and fund innovative solutions to increase and maintain 

current supplies of affordable housing in their areas. 

 

Proposed Social Housing Green Paper 
The details of the government’s proposals following the Grenfell Tower fire, were 

revealed in August 2018 in the consultation on the new housing green paper “A new 

deal for social housing”. Proposals consisted of 5 main themes 

 ensuring homes are safe and decent  

 effective resolution of complaints  

 empowering residents and strengthening the regulator (incl. introduction of 

ofsted style league tables) 

 tackling stigma and celebrating thriving communities  

 expanding supply and supporting home ownership are as yet unknown.  

 

The implementation of the proposals, including the revisit of the decent homes 

standard, are yet to be published. 

  

Improving Access to Social Housing for Victims of Domestic Abuse 
The Government has made a commitment to improve circumstances for victims of 

domestic abuse, including improving access to social housing for those that have had 

to flee abuse and supporting victims to remain in their home if they want to. Work 

began in 2017 and a 3rd round of consultation on proposals has recently concluded. 

The proposal is to put responding collaboratively to domestic abuse on a more statutory 

footing. This includes a commitment from council housing departments to participate 

and contribute to partnership domestic abuse board 

 

  

Page 27



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 18  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In 2017 the Council took back the management function of its council stock from the 

Arm’s Length Management Organisation (ALMO) known as Welwyn Hatfield Community 

Housing Trust. 

 

Housing Operations4 
 

Council housing is managed by the Housing Operations service, in conjunction with the 

Property Services Team which oversees the repair and maintenance of the council’s 

housing stock.  The Community and Housing Strategy team supports these teams 

through developing strategy across all housing services, as well as leading on the 

delivery of new council housing and managing the waiting list and allocation of homes.  

 

In 2017/18 we concluded a full service review and implemented a business 

transformation project. The review was necessary to: 

 Determine whether the service was still fit for purpose and to see how we can 

deliver services in a more efficient and modern way.  

 Find savings and efficiencies. The1% reduction in rental income for 4 years from 

2016 presented a real term value of a reduced income of £500K per year (1%) for 

the service,  

 Ensure our services are enabled to tackle other sector challenges such as welfare 

reform e.g. the roll out of Universal Credit.  

 Review and understand the customer experience and strive to improve this 

where we can. 

 

The review highlighted that we had an outdated service delivery model which had led 

to service development stagnation. Areas of duplication and inefficiency were 

identified, as well as room to improve on the customer experience to increase 

satisfaction levels and reduce the need for complaint. 

                                                                        

 

Part 4 
Our Housing Services 
 

Page 28



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 19  

 

Our aims were to: 

 Deliver services through a modern and updated service model 

 Ensure the service is more streamlined and efficient 

 Introduce simplified touchpoints that improve the customer journey 

 Encourage change in the organisational culture to align with the council, that is 

customer focused and drives stable and cohesive neighbourhoods 

 Achieve an increase in positive outcomes, increased levels of satisfaction 

through improved efficiency and performance 

 

Our revised structure delivers the service through 4 key function areas; 

 

 

1. Neighbourhood and Enforcement 
This service delivers a highly visible, mixed tenure, neighbourhood and tenancy 

management service, putting the customers at the heart of the team’s ethos and 

having a more visible presence in our neighbourhoods and communities. 

This service includes specialist teams that manage all aspects of tenancy and 

neighbourhood nuisance and anti-social behaviour across the council.  This team also 

takes the operational lead on safeguarding for the council.  The team delivers a 

customer focused all-encompassing tenancy sustainment service, bringing together the 

various tenancy support services previously provided by different teams in the council, 

into one team. 

 

2. Income and Leasehold Management 
This service consists of a customer focused income collection team responsible for 

collecting all rent, arrears and service charges across mixed housing rent tenures, 

managing the arrears recovery process from start to finish. Resourcing this team 

sufficiently allows for improved recovery of former tenant arrears and other sundry 

debts.  

 

A rent transaction and account team is responsible for administering rent account 

transactions across mixed tenures. 

 

In addition, the team includes a specialised leasehold team, combining the pre-existing 

back office accounting and consultation functions with a new customer- facing 

leasehold service. This service is responsible for the administration and collection of 

leasehold associated charges, a comprehensive leaseholder housing management 

service and the Right to Buy administration process.   

 

 

Page 29



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 20  
 

 

3. Independent Living 

This service manages the older persons sheltered housing schemes, and is a customer 

focused and interactive service responsible for ensuring the scheme buildings are safe, 

secure and managed. The scheme coordinator roles are not responsible for the delivery 

of any housing or tenancy management services, focusing more on the wellbeing of 

the older residents in the schemes and the schemes’ buildings. 

 

4. Business Excellence Team 
This team is focused on driving improvements across the Housing and Communities 

Service, looking at technology, digital access, housing IT support and administration as 

well as customer insight, performance management and profiling. 

 

These teams will continue to work closely with Property Services, Housing Options, the 

wider Community Safety Team and Housing Strategy to deliver a comprehensive, 

joined-up service for tenants at all stages of their tenancy.  

 

Challenges   
The most pressing issues for housing operations include: 

 

 Maximising rent collection and keeping arrears to a minimum, particularly in the 

face of challenging welfare reforms and socio-economic pressures. 

 Letting our properties quickly and to people that need them to help meet the 

boroughs housing need, whilst maximising rental income. 

 Ensuring tenants have the necessary support and advice to help them maintain 

their tenancy. 

 Ensuring anti-social behaviour is managed robustly and fairly to maintain a safe 

and healthy community. 

 Provide housing and services to enable older people to live as independently as 

possible. 

 Offering tenants and leaseholders opportunities to get involved in the housing 

service and have their say on the issues that affect them and the services they 

receive. 

 

 

 

Page 30



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 21  

 

Rent Collection 
The rental income stream underpins the HRA. We have a good track record of 

proactive rent recovery of current debt, and achieved significant success despite our 

challenging environment as described earlier. The creation of a new centralised income 

management team, has significantly improved performance still further. 

 

However, ensuring tenants have the necessary support and advice to help them 

maintain their tenancies in times of welfare reform and social-economic pressure is also 

key to our success. The Tenancy Support Team who carry out this role, recently moved 

into the Housing Operations Team to provide a more seamless service covering tenancy 

management, support and enforcement. 

 

The tables below provide an illustration of performance over the past 5 years 

 

Table 1: Income Recovery Performance for Current Tenant Arrears for Past 5 Years 

Financial Year 

End       

Value of Year 

End Arrears in 

Accounts 

(Current 

Tenants) 

Gross Debit 

Raised in Year 

Current Tenant 

Arrears as a 

Percentage of 

Gross Debit  

Raised in the 

Year 

Number of 

Evictions 

Executed 

per year 

31/03/2019 909,258 48,728,695 1.87% 20 

31/03/2018 933,123 49,259,016 1.89% 13 

31/03/2017 751,120  49,608,068 1.51%  17 

31/03/2016 743,127  50,545,789 1.47% 10 

31/03/2015 834,366  48,058,773 1.74% 12 

 

 

Table 2: Income Recovery Performance for Former Tenant Arrears for Past 5 Years 

Financial Year End Value of Year End Arrears in 

Accounts (Former Tenants) 

31/03/2019 1,276,087 

31/03/2018 1,685,961 

31/03/2017 1,592,513  

31/03/2016 1,493,352  

31/03/2015 1,559,590  

 

 

Page 31



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 22  
 

Current debt has been managed at under 2% of rent since 2014/15.  Most of the former 

debt has been provided for. 

 

Void Management 
Effective management of our empty homes is a vital process within both Housing 

Operations and Property Services as minimising the period a property is empty reduces 

waiting times for households on the Housing Needs Register and families in temporary 

accommodation, whilst maximising revenue into the HRA. 

 

Voids performance in the main is satisfactory as set out in the following chart, but we still 

aim to make improvements.  

 

 
Source: Govt Annual Returns Local Authority Housing Statistics 

 

Management of the voids process continues across all relevant teams who work 

collaboratively to manage both the works required to bring an empty property up to a 

lettable standard and manage the administrative and customer facing allocation 

processes to re-let the property to the new tenant. 

 

Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour 
Anti-social behaviour is managed across a number of teams, with low- and high-level 

reactive management and enforcement managed within Housing Operations and a 

Strategic Community Safety Team that works in partnership with key stakeholders in the 

borough to ensure we focus on providing a safe and healthy community. Improved 

17.9 17 

20 

23.8 
22.1 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

 Void Turnaround Times for Last 5 years 

 Days 

Page 32



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 23  

ownership and accountability have been evidenced following service transformation, 

with clearer roles and responsibilities and visibility of officers. 

 

The teams provide a collaborative approach to managing anti-social behaviour 

affecting council properties and more widely across all tenures within the borough. This 

includes in public spaces or involving housing association or private-sector housing. 

Recent priorities have been tackling the increasing issues of youth related anti-social 

behaviour across the borough, which are impacting on our communities and visitors to 

our neighbourhood and town centers. There are also issues in some of our local parks.  

The teams continue to work closely with our partners - the police, other agencies and 

council departments to gather information and take appropriate and speedy action to 

put an end to any behaviour having a detrimental impact on individuals or the wider 

community.  

 

The council’s approach to preventing and managing anti-social behaviour is set out 

within the new Anti-social Behaviour Policy and arrangements for its implementation are 

included within our Anti-social Behaviour Strategy  

 

Independent Living 
The Housing Revenue Account owns and manages many sheltered housing schemes, 

which provide accommodation suited to older people and people with support needs. 

Schemes provide varying levels of support to enable residents to live independently in 

their council home.  

 

The schemes are a mixture of: 

 

 Neighbourhood schemes - which are clusters of properties (mainly bungalows) 

with their own off-street front doors, often with parking and gardens. 

 Traditional schemes - where tenants’ homes have their own front doors onto an 

internal corridor, with some communal facilities. 

 

In recent years, a number of schemes have been decommissioned to be used as 

general needs housing, following strategic assessments of housing demand and 

availability. 

 

In line with the goals set out in our Older Person’s Housing Strategy, there is a significant 

programme of planned investment in the council’s sheltered housing stock which 

includes the demolition and rebuild of a new state of the art sheltered scheme at 

Minster House and remodeling and modernisation of a number of other schemes across 

the borough, to modernise facilities, improve accessibility, increase light and storage 

space.  

Page 33



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 24  
 

 

We have also invested part of the Better Care Fund (grant funding from NHS to join up 

services to help people maintain independent living) in sheltered schemes, meeting our 

strategic aims to improve independence and quality of life. 

 

Our specialist staff manage schemes to provide quality, value for money services to 

residents, facilitating independent living within the community. 

 

Leaseholder Services 
The leaseholder service currently supports the administration of: 

 

 The 1200 leases of former council properties sold under the Right to Buy. 

 The Right to Buy application and administration process. 

 

One of the main functions of the leasehold team is to ensure that the council recovers 

any service charges and major works costs that it reasonably incurs as the Freeholder, 

and that services provided are of an appropriate standard.  

 

The leasehold team also administer or deal with: 

 

 Section 20 Consultations for major planned works, in order to comply with the 

requirements of relevant legislation. 

 Pre-sales enquiries in relation to leasehold property sell-ons 

 Advice on breaches of lease conditions, including recovery of service charge 

arrears. 

 Leaseholder alterations in conjunction with property services. 

 

In respect of managing leaseholders, we  

 are reviewing the role of the tenants panel with respect to leaseholders to make 

it more engagement led and less individual complaint focused 

 have introduced a new specialised leaseholder team, who provide a customer 

facing service in order to support our drive to increase satisfaction within this 

service area. 

We consider both essential as the Government continues to prioritise home ownership 

and the number of leaseholders increases with more RTB’s being completed. 

Page 34



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 25  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Asset Management5 
The self-financing environment enables a pro-active approach for asset management 

planning.  An updated Asset Management Strategy is currently being prepared. The 

revised document will provide an analysis of current housing assets belonging to the 

council and the strategy for investing in the stock to meet legislative, regulatory and 

housing needs. 

 

Knowledge of the housing assets and the level of short, medium and long-term 

investment is a fundamental part of the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan. We 

recognise the principles of effective asset management and the importance of 

maintaining accurate stock condition and attribute information. 

 

Planned capital works have been re-negotiated for the remaining five years of our long 

term partnering contract with Mears and this information, along with anticipated 

volumes of works, feeds into management accounts.  

 

The Asset Management Strategy will consider options for council housing assets through 

an appraisal process.  This process will consider a number of factors such as historical 

investment, planned investment, churn, and other weighted factors, such as 

environmental and social-economic issues (parking, desirability etc.). 

 

The Housing Revenue Account may consider regeneration or strategic disposal of 

assets, for example where an asset negatively contributes to the business plan, utilising 

any capital receipt to re-invest in affordable housing.   

 

                                                                        

 

Part 5 
Capital & Asset Management 
 

Page 35



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 26  
 

 

Decent Homes 

 
In 2016, RAND Associates were commissioned to undertake a 10% stock condition 

validation exercise, for the purpose of endorsing the council’s short-term investment 

plan. This exercise gathered data consistent with the council’s asset management 

database and provided full assurances as to the data held, while also recommending 

changes for further refinement.  

 

This has allowed us to deliver an extensive re-investment programme which targets any 

properties before they become “non-decent” to bring them up to a modern standard.   

 

The housing service reported achievement of “decency” in the housing stock as at 1st 

April 2017, with nearly 100% of the stock achieving the desired standard. There were 36 

properties that were considered to be non-decent (in addition to the 17 refusals6).  

 

In preparation for the implementation of a medium to long-term investment plan, a 

further stock condition validation will be undertaken once the future of the Decent 

Homes Standard is established.  

 

In the meantime, we continually develop and enhance our asset management 

database (increasing the volume of surveys completed), we anticipate an inevitable 

increase in tenant refusals to provide access, and the challenge for us will be meeting 

the needs of all our tenants. 

 

Our Spend Requirements 
Currently the expenditure requirements over the 30-year period is detailed in the table 

below and factored into the financial projections that form this business plan. 

 

  
COMPONENT Yrs 1-5 Yrs 6-10 Yrs 11-15 Yrs 16-20 Yrs 21-25 Yrs 26-30 TOTAL 

Access £3,686,374 £741,989 £154,329 £173,850 £1,909,026 £541,224 £7,206,792 

Balconies £175,064 £62,830 £394,206 £131,058 £48,407 £83,890 £895,455 

Bathroom £3,582,131 £1,824,901 £2,592,730 £2,797,531 £4,144,000 £3,988,150 £18,929,443 

Bin Stores £1,325,136 £209,232 £370,515 £265,899 £43,590 £618,978 £2,833,350 

Block; Other Door £34,604 £67,942 £37,136 £4,220 £8,440 £10,972 £163,314 

                                                                        

 

Page 36



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 27  

Boiler £6,431,826 £2,273,462 £4,438,373 £5,695,141 £2,274,727 £4,428,650 £25,542,179 

Boundary Walls £576,042 £328,662 £341,620 £1,501,361 £143,127 £1,045,475 £3,936,287 

Canopies £375,458 £138,555 £93,682 £280,072 £43,698 £228,789 £1,160,254 

Carbon Monoxide Detector £614,880 £195,468 £511,560 £195,468 £511,560 £195,468 £2,224,404 

Cavity Wall Insulation £2,214 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £2,214 

Communal Works £3,586,435 £1,525,045 £2,091,841 £2,021,657 £1,121,848 £3,254,147 £13,600,973 

Consumer Unit £49,413 £20,471 £37,130 £79,343 £54,919 £28,377 £269,654 

Door Entry Systems £141,464 £29,748 £79,476 £112,604 £32,412 £79,476 £475,180 

Doors £3,700,746 £722,926 £1,389,374 £1,336,864 £2,139,402 £3,040,220 £12,329,532 

Drying Areas £105,864 £33,330 £197,472 £26,334 £9,900 £66,198 £439,098 

Electrical Works £10,662,876 £5,564,075 £5,667,846 £5,190,703 £5,300,510 £8,798,081 £41,184,089 

External Staircases £167,631 £0 £15,740 £7,870 £10,231 £0 £201,472 

Fascias £424,107 £116,262 £148,977 £139,572 £177,930 £305,784 £1,312,632 

Fences £4,596,935 £301,154 £510,384 £73,451 £429,436 £3,705,086 £9,616,446 

Fire Action Plan £2,259,184 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £2,259,184 

Fire Alarms £63,074 £114,774 £16,544 £63,074 £114,774 £16,544 £388,784 

Garages £104,967 £51,021 £68,287 £248,327 £25,800 £119,112 £617,514 

Guest Bedroom £0 £2,000 £0 £8,000 £0 £2,000 £12,000 

Hardstandings £149,750 £370,350 £275,350 £380,500 £78,300 £133,650 £1,387,900 

Heating Distribution £8,908,071 £2,871,942 £268,176 £260,427 £85,560 £5,589,942 £17,984,118 

Hot Water Cylinder £19,800 £14,700 £58,200 £23,400 £21,000 £25,200 £162,300 

Kitchens £4,900,456 £6,146,074 £6,648,422 £6,189,645 £4,200,757 £6,146,074 £34,231,428 

Lifts £150,000 £0 £0 £75,000 £300,000 £675,000 £1,200,000 

Mobility scooter store £11,850 £0 £0 £11,850 £17,775 £0 £41,475 

Painting Programme £9,177,000 £7,280,000 £6,927,000 £3,924,000 £6,034,000 £8,040,000 £41,382,000 

Out Buildings £756,942 £564,449 £202,453 £668,062 £186,110 £962,451 £3,340,467 

Paths £6,292,200 £673,200 £389,250 £176,000 £109,050 £2,675,950 £10,315,650 

Porch £32,704 £54,343 £250,414 £56,218 £12,264 £24,190 £430,133 

Railing/Balustrading £1,995 £9,485 £11,060 £2,695 £2,835 £3,535 £31,605 

Rainwater goods £1,824,303 £746,626 £1,424,416 £2,574,957 £606,366 £798,890 £7,975,558 

Retaining Walls £52,470 £187,110 £32,010 £8,690 £4,840 £24,200 £309,320 

Road Surface Material £685,154 £146,048 £174,050 £225,116 £12,320 £196,992 £1,439,680 

Roof Covering £2,575,022 £5,550,630 £2,850,850 £5,686,884 £3,463,944 £17,363,227 £37,490,557 

Secondary Heating £858,684 £45,340 £23,144 £702,976 £149,364 £55,932 £1,835,440 

Separate  WC £98,107 £3,980 £4,975 £6,567 £68,058 £70,645 £252,332 

Smoke/Heat Detectors £777,665 £891,990 £334,220 £891,990 £334,220 £891,990 £4,122,075 

Soffit £739,830 £96,697 £173,521 £1,217,658 £658,852 £275,698 £3,162,256 

Solid wall insulation £1,609,392 £0 £7,236 £0 £231,552 £7,236 £1,855,416 

External Fabric/Rain Screen £6,625,805 £1,773,526 £1,434,921 £716,752 £541,857 £1,808,836 £12,901,697 

Wall Construction £35,000 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £35,000 

Water storage tank £0 £0 £5,000 £0 £0 £0 £5,000 

Windows £1,171,208 £3,575,216 £5,168,052 £304,830 £6,454,380 £3,815,854 £20,489,540 

TOTAL £90,119,833 £45,325,553 £45,819,942 £44,456,616 £42,117,141 £80,142,113 £347,981,197 

 

 

The table above identifies a significant level of investment in our stock and are at 

current rates, based on latest stock count and at today’s values. The highest bands of 

expenditure are at both the beginning and the end of the plan reflecting current 

programme needs and then the replacement of components due to life expectancy. 

 

Page 37



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 28  
 

In terms of expenditure on a per-property basis over a thirty-year period, our asset 

management database projects that an average £39,200 per unit will need to be 

invested in our properties. This is in-line with similar sized local authorities.  

 

Delivering New Affordable Homes 
An Affordable Housing Delivery Strategy has been developed, which sets out proposals 

for a five-year programme of direct development, forming part of our short-medium 

capital expenditure. 

 

Currently a small number of sites from within the existing general needs stock have been 

identified for remodeling or redevelopment, to modernise and design out management 

problems.  Following an assessment on their current and future viability, further feasibility 

work has been completed to bring forward schemes for inclusion in the Delivery 

Strategy.  

 

Further council owned sites have or are being developed for affordable housing utilising 

HRA funding and available receipts from the sale of homes under the Right to Buy. In 

addition further units will be developed under a ‘general programme’ utilising other HRA 

land opportunities.  A decision was recently taken by the council’s Cabinet to 

redevelop the only owned and managed council tower block, Queensway House.  

Feasibility work is underway and this will be built into the HRA Business Plan once further 

detailed work has been completed.  This plan includes assumptions about replacement 

components within Queensway House, which will also be updated once the feasibility 

work is complete. 

 

Finally, to ensure the use of Right to Buy receipts we will purchase units from the open 

market as and when required, to complement our development programme, with the 

aim of increasing further the supply of affordable housing.  

 

As part of our base position for future years, for financial planning, we will match right to 

buy sale levels with acquisitions from future developments and open market purchases 

to ensure a consistent level of housing provision. 

 

Appendix D contains the Development Update which sets out the full detail on delivery 

and will be updated on an annual basis.  

 

 

 

Page 38



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 29  

Redevelopment and regeneration 
The Council’s general approach to stock redevelopment is set out in our Housing, 

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, a key priority includes making the best use 

of our housing stock, which focuses on meeting local need, delivering new homes 

which local people can afford to live in, raising our property standards and improving 

energy efficiency. 

 

Our Older Persons Housing Strategy focuses on the needs of the borough’s older 

members of the community.  A detailed review of the council’s sheltered housing stock 

was undertaken, taking account of the condition, layout/design, location, demand, 

future investment requirements, and suitability for flexi-care provision in respect of the 

future viability of each scheme. The outcome has informed a future investment 

programme as well as redevelopment proposals for schemes where we have identified 

that they will not meet the changing needs and aspirations of older people.  ) 

 

A review of temporary accommodation sites has been undertaken with a view to 

providing modern and flexible temporary accommodation in higher numbers.  

 

Funding Our Capital Programme 
The table below demonstrates how our short-medium term plan is financed. 

 

  2019/20 
£’m 

2020.21 
£’m 

2021.22 
£’m 

2022.23 
£’m 

2023.24 
£’m 

Total 
£’m 

Works to Existing Properties 10.850 14.086 10.832 11.100 11.061 57.929 

Development and Acquisitions 12.512 23.171 32.000 17.000 6.000 90.683 

Total Capital Expenditure 23.362 37.257 42.832 28.100 17.061 148.613 

Loan Repayments 18.800 20.000 21.400 22.700 24.200 107.100 

Financing Requirement 42.162 57.258 64.232 50.800 41.261 255.713 

Financed by:       

Major Repairs Reserve 14.777 15.440 15.749 16.094 16.385 78.415 

Capital Receipts and 
Contributions 

4.705 18.076 10.050 6.554 3.202 42.587 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 7.383 7.230 7.383 8.474 9.937 40.407 

New Borrowing 15.297 16.512 31.050 19.708 11.737 94.304 

Page 39



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 30  
 

Total Financing Applied 42.162 57.258 64.232 50.800 41.261 255.713 

 

In 2012 the Council took on significant borrowing as part of the HRA self-financing 

settlement and loans were taken out with a range of loan redemption dates. The 

programme above shows that £107.1million of loans will mature over the next 5 years 

but in order to finance the capital programme £85.2million will in fact need to be 

refinanced. 

 

The following graph shows the levels of capital expenditure forecast over the 30 year 

plan period. It splits this expenditure between debt repayment (for both current and 

future debt requirements), investment in development and provision of new homes and 

projected capital investment in existing and future stock.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The graph below demonstrates how this level of expenditure will be funded. 

 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

M
ill

io
n

s 

Works to Existing Properties Development/Acquisition 

Page 40



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 31  

 

 

 

 

This demonstrates that all investment requirements for the stock can be fully financed 

over the 30 years, without the need for borrowing beyond year 12, with the exception of 

year 27. The full set of projections can be viewed in Appendix D. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

M
il

li
o

n
s 

Major Repairs Reserve Capital Receipts and Contributions 

Revenue Contribution to Capital New Borrowing 

Page 41



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 32  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Value for Money  
Value for Money (VFM) is an understanding of whether or not we achieve the maximum 

benefit and quality from the goods and services we acquire and provide, with the 

resources available to achieve it.  This assessment includes considerations about 

suitability, quality, whole life costs and the relationship between economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness. 

 

VFM is at the core of the HRA business plan; we achieve this in housing through: 

 Benchmarking with other organisations and regular review of our services, to 

improve working practices and remove inefficiency 

 Robust processes for monitoring expenditure 

 Procuring services externally and in partnership with others where this will help 

drive up service quality and help us achieve better VFM 

 Maximising external investment and funding opportunities  

 Embedding value for money at an operational level incorporating service users 

and other stakeholders to help with priorities and ensuring the outcomes 

delivered are effective. 

 

Efficiency 
The HRA business plan supports the council’s focus on achieving efficiencies and 

ensuring that we get the most from our resources.   

 

While the budget setting process is focused on the preparation of the budget for the 

following financial year it is clear from government funding forecasts that we are facing 

a growing budget gap over the medium term period.  In order to ensure the council 

Part 6 
Performance & Value for Money 
 

Page 42



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 33  

looks to the future and takes the necessary action to maintain financial sustainability, 

the annual budget process also focusses on the delivery of longer term projects to 

deliver efficiencies and increased income in future years. 

 

Through the HRA business plan we are committed to delivering services more efficiently. 

Service efficiencies are monitored and reviewed regularly highlighting where savings 

can be made, but it is evident that finding efficiencies to deliver a balanced budget will 

be a significant challenge moving forward as well as looking for opportunities to invest in 

improving services. Our approach to source efficiencies beyond 2019/20 will be via: 

 

 Exploring new areas of activity for income generation. 

 

 Asset use optimisation and seeking commercial opportunities 

 

 Effective use of assets – challenging the asset base and the use of assets and 

looking to manage and plan maintenance in the most effective way 

 

 Working in partnership with both private and public bodies to improve quality 

and scope of service and reduce costs, including models for sharing 

 

 Improving efficiency and working innovatively where possible.  

 

 Smarter procurement processes and ways of working. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 
The council uses performance indicators so that we can identify how well we are 

delivering our services and managing income.  Performance Indicators are also a useful 

way of seeing how our services are performing over time and when compared to the 

same services being provided by other organisations.  We constantly monitor our 

performance indicators and they are reviewed regularly by the Cabinet Housing Panel 

and by the Leader of the council and the Executive Members.  The Performance is also 

reported to the Tenants’ Panel on a quarterly basis, so that its members can scrutinise 

how well we are performing.  A comprehensive list of our Key Performance Indicators is 

set out in Appendix A 

 

Strategic and operational change is managed through regular management meetings 

including Senior Management Team, Operational Management Meetings and our 

quarterly housing Leadership meetings, which include every level of management 

Page 43



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 34  
 

within the Housing and Communities Team. These meetings are also used to monitor 

progress on actions arising from audits and to update risks.   

 

Partnering Arrangements  
Our partnerships help us achieve success in service delivery.  

 

Our largest contract is the partnering agreement with Mears to deliver responsive 

repairs, voids (revenue) and planned maintenance (capital). The “open-book” contract 

which commenced in 2007 runs until 2022 with a total value of approximately £165m 

over the term of the contract. 

 

Both the council and Mears recognise the benefits of a long-term business relationship 

which affords opportunities to develop strategic alliances, generate efficiencies and 

enable investments in the community which may not be possible with more traditional 

client / contractor relationships.  

 

The partnering agreement has an embedded “Partnering Protocol” and a process of 

re-negotiating target rates. The target rates have recently been re-negotiated for the 

remainder of the contract. 

 

Housing’s Property Services Team works closely with Housing Operations and Finance to 

ensure that procurement and financial requirements are met; an independent 

partnering consultant has been appointed jointly by Mears and the council to oversee 

the contractual and other aspects of the agreement. 

 

At time of writing the current maintenance contract is nearing its end and the council is 

in the process of reprocuring this major contract. 

 

For the delivery of gas heating services, including annual landlord safety checks, 

breakdowns / repairs and new installations, the council has separate contracts and 

currently has two separate contracts, each covering an area of the borough.  This 

approach increases resilience to ensure that this crucial service is delivered to the 

highest standard.  

 

Whilst we adopt an open and consultative approach to contract management, we 

have in place robust arrangements for monitoring outcomes and contract compliance.  

This includes strategic quarterly monitoring meeting which includes attendance by the 

council’s Corporate Director as well as senior managers from all organisations and 

Page 44



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 35  

monthly operational meetings which focus on day to day issues, including performance 

management. 

 

Property Services (Housing) will continue to seek partnering opportunities with 

contractors to deliver services and utilise the Welwyn Hatfield procurement processes to 

maximise efficiencies in service delivery. 

  

Page 45



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 36  
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

HRA Self Financing 
 

The HRA is a ring-fenced account relating to the council’s landlord function. The self-

financing system introduced in 2012 for the HRA removed the uncertainty caused by the 

old annual subsidy arrangements and has allowed for better long term financial 

planning for the ring fenced account. In April 2016 the government   implemented 

direct control over council rent setting, which has seen a four-year programme of 1% 

reductions for social housing rents and the ending of social rent convergence. This is a 

reversal of previous policy and has led to a revision of the debt strategy for the HRA 

moving forward.  

 

The core constituents of the account are rent income; both capital and revenue 

maintenance of the housing stock; management costs; and debt repayments. As the 

account has been carrying a fairly high balance, the council has also been making 

revenue contributions to capital expenditure. This has been most recently used for the 

provision of new properties, through either acquisition or new development, as part of 

the council’s Affordable Housing Programme.  Contributions have been supplementing 

retained useable Right to Buy receipts.  

 

The process for setting financial targets for HRA services is the same as for general fund 

services in terms of links to the Business Plan, Corporate Objectives and service planning 

and setting the approved budget.  The HRA projection is set with regard to the council’s 

overall Housing Business Plan. 

 

The chart below shows the percentage of expenditure on the core headings based on 

the net income to the HRA for the 2019/20 budget: 

 

Part 7 
HRA Financial Projections 
 

Page 46



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 37  

 

 

 

Short-Medium Term Position  
The following table charts the short to medium term forecasts for the HRA: 

 

  2019/20 
£’m 

2020.21 
£’m 

2021.22 
£’m 

2022.23 
£’m 

2023.24 
£’m 

      

Dwelling rents  (48.640)   (49.175)  (50.653)   (52.879)   (55.045)  

Non-dwelling rents (0.541)   (0.551)   (0.562)   (0.573)   (0.584)  

Service charge income (2.556)  (2.622)   (2.674)   (2.727)   (2.782)  

Other income and contributions  (0.260)   (0.453)   (0.462)   (0.471)   (0.480)  

Total income  (51.997)   (52.801)  (54.351)   (56.650)   (58.891)  
      

Repairs & maintenance  9.474   9.687   9.881   10.079   10.281  

Supervision and Management  13.551   13.866   14.142   14.424   14.712  

Bad and Doubtful Debt Provision  0.500   0.492   0.507   0.529   0.550  

Depreciation  14.777   15.440   15.749   16.064   16.385  

Other Expenditure   0.039   0.028   0.029   0.030   0.031  

Total costs  38.341   39.513   40.308   41.126   41.960  
      

Interest payable 6.270 6.374 6.745 7.100 7.048 

Interest income (0.089) (0.163) (0.162) (0.163) (0.165) 

Revenue contributions to capital 7.383 7.230 7.373 8.474 9.937 

      

Net HRA (Surplus)/Deficit (0.091) 0.151 (0.077) (0.113) (0.111) 

 

How Net HRA Income Spent 

Repairs & Maintenance Management and Other Expenses 

Debt Repayment and Interest Capital Investment 

Page 47



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 38  
 

These forecasts shows the HRA maintaining a balance greater than the minimum level 

of 5% of annual net income, as set out in the Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy: 

 

  2019/20 
£’m 

2020.21 
£’m 

2021.22 
£’m 

2022.23 
£’m 

2023.24 
£’m 

      

Opening Balance (2.596) (2.688) (2.536) (2.613) (2.726) 
Net HRA (Surplus)/Deficit (0.091) 0.151 (0.077) (0.113) (0.111) 

Closing Balance (2.688) (2.536) (2.613) (2.726) (2.837) 

 

Treasury Management 
The Council invests in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy and will plan 

any consideration of borrowing closely through the financial strategy, Asset 

Management Plan and five-year Capital Budget. 

 

The Treasury Management Strategy will rely upon the financial forecast within this plan 

and subsequent updates to inform the duration and methodology of repayment of 

loans. 

 

Borrowing Requirements 
With a combination of both investment in new affordable housing and our existing stock 

there is a clear need for the HRA to borrow in order to meet existing loan repayments. 

The graph below shows the projected loan balances over the next 12 years: 

 

 

0 

50,000,000 

100,000,000 

150,000,000 

200,000,000 

250,000,000 

2019.20 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30 2030.31 

Borrowing Requirements 

Existing Loans New Loans 

Page 48



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 39  

 

Over the next 12 years the existing loan portfolio which, at 1 April 2019, stood at 

£246.699million will be repaid. In order to finance the capital programme and these 

debt repayments a projected additional (new) borrowing of £211.1millionwill be 

needed during this period. 

 

This plan assumes in the following years, to demonstrate viability, using all available 

surpluses within the HRA to repay debt. The overall debt levels are demonstrated in the 

graph below. 

 

 

 

The graph above demonstrates that all existing and additional new borrowing can be 

repaid within 23 years. Whilst recent changes in legislation have seen the HRA debt cap 

abolished we have demonstrated the outgoing cap level. We are aware that CIPFA are 

reviewing this position and may issue voluntary guidelines in terms of borrowing limits or 

apply similar prudential borrowing restrictions as per the Council’s General Fund. 

 

Currently there is no legislative requirement for the HRA to be debt-free or repay debt, 

but the above graph is the best representation of viability by demonstrating the HRA’s 

ability to do so. 

 

Long-Term Revenue Forecasts 
The graph below demonstrates the revenue forecasts for the HRA inclusive of the Major 

Repairs Reserve: 

 

0 

50,000 

100,000 

150,000 

200,000 

250,000 

300,000 

350,000 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

Provisional Debt cap HRA debt 

Page 49



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 40  
 

 
 

With the assumed debt repayment schedule ensuring that the HRA is debt free from 

year 23 of the plan, balances begin to accrue within the HRA resulting in a projected 

balance of £192.125m at Year 30. 

 

Whilst the Major Repairs Reserve balances increase during the mid to late stages of the 

plan, these are fully utilised to fund the capital works projected in the final five years of 

the plan.  

 

With balances accruing from Year 15 of the plan, subject to investment remaining at 

the projected levels of this plan, there will be no requirement for further borrowing. 

 

The full set of financial projections are shown in Appendix C. 

 

Key Assumptions 
Key assumptions used in the 2019/20 budget, and being incorporated into the business 

plan for future forecasts are: 

 

 

 

 

0 

50,000 

100,000 

150,000 

200,000 

250,000 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

MR reserve HRA/Other reserves c/f 

Page 50



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 41  

Budget Assumptions 

  

Consumer Price Index 

(CPI) 

2% all years 

Rents CPI +1% for 5 years then CPI only 

Right to Buys 40 per year for 5 years then gradually reducing 

Non-Dwelling Income CPI only 

Service Charges CPI only 

Repairs (Maintenance) CPI plus 0.25% (no adjustment for net stock loss) 

Major Repairs CPI plus 1% (no adjustment for net stock loss) 

Interest on New Borrowing 3.5% all-in 

 

A key assumption is around levels of rent increases. The HRA now comes under 

legislative control, as for other Registered housing providers, in that our rents will have to 

comply with the newly proposed rent standard. Our assumptions ensure that our rent 

levels comply with the draft rent standard. 

 

Sensitivities 
Some figures used for key assumptions in the business plan could have different 

predictive values, if there was an underlying change. Examples of assumptions that are 

subject to variables in the plan are set out below 

 

Sensitivity HRA Bal 

at Yr 30 £’m 

New 

Borrowing 

£’m 

Debt 

Repaid 

Yr 
Base 192.125 204.258 23 

CPI @2.5% 262.163 196.647 21 

New Borrowing Interest 4% 171.499 211.423 23 

Rents @CPI +0.5% Yr 6+ 330.141 197.500 21 

Bad Debts +1% 163.329 211.734 24 

5% Management Costs 173.622 210.018 23 

 

These sensitivities show that the HRA is resilient to changes in assumptions and external 

factors. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 42  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Government Rent Policy 
The implications of the rent reduction and the associated challenges on the HRA have 

been covered in Part 2 – National Context.  Council rents have been low and were due 

to reach the Government’s target rent levels (set under a previous rent policy) by 

2022/23.  This was changed by the policy of rent reduction of 1% for 4 years to end in 

2019/20 and thereafter change to CPI+1% for a period, currently 5 years. The impact of 

rent cuts and the reinvigoration of right of buy has seen our finances significantly 

impacted whereby debt repayment schedules cannot be adhered, particularly in light 

of our commitment to invest in the delivery of new homes via our affordable housing 

programme. 

 

From April 2020 all local authorities will have to adhere to the regulator of social 

housing’s new Rent Standard. Whilst our rents are below the target rent for each 

property this standard will control future rent increases and rent setting policies. The 

financial projections within this business plan are prudent, in order to provide a level of 

certainty that our rents will comply with the standard moving forward. 

 

Right to Buy  
The reinvigorated Right to Buy scheme is both a risk and an opportunity.  As previously 

explained, the current scale of Right to Buy completions is leading to a reduction in the 

housing stock.  However under the government’s ‘One for One Replacement’ Scheme, 

which the council signed up to in 2012, the council retains a large proportion of right to 

buy receipts, which are used to support the delivery of new affordable homes.  The 

terms of the scheme mean that if the receipts are not spent within three years or 

receipt, they must be returned to government and a penalty is incurred. The receipts 

can be used to fund a maximum of 30% of eligible development costs.  The balance 

Part 8 
Current Key Risks and 

Opportunities 
 

Page 52



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 43  

(70%) must come from other sources; e.g.  borrowing and working with external partners. 

The Government recently removed the borrowing cap, which was previously applied to 

local authorities.  Whilst this additional freedom is a welcome policy change, the 

borrowing cap was not the main barrier to developing more social housing – land 

availability is. 

 

Our ambition is to deliver new affordable homes at a level which will at least maintain 

the council’s housing stock at 9000 rented homes, although we would like to achieve 

more.  We will therefore continue to identify opportunities to invest in new homes 

through acquisitions and development opportunities. 

 

In 2018 the government consulted on changes to the agreed parameters for spending 

right to buy receipts.  This proposed changes to include extending the time allowed to 

spend receipts from three to five years, increasing the proportion of receipts that could 

make up the cost of development from 30% to 50% where properties are let at social 

rent levels, but also capping acquisition expenditure. The first two proposals, if adopted, 

will have a positive impact to our plan, whereas the proposed cap on acquisitions will 

require additional financing within the plan. It is unknown at this stage if this measures 

set out in the consultation document will progress. 

 

Welfare Reform  
The council remains vigilant around the potential impact of the changes brought about 

by welfare reform.  A large number of tenants have now been moved on to Universal 

Credit.  Operationally, the transformation of service delivery was designed to help 

provide the maximum support to our tenants and also to help maximise rent collection.  

However to be prudent and to mitigate any potential risk within this Business Plan, the 

bad debt provision has retained at £500,000. 

 

The detail and scale for all of the changes and the funding environment are constantly 

changing, which makes modelling them difficult, so it’s important to note that the 

position set out in this report could change as more data becomes available.   

 

Housing Demand and Homelessness 

The council’s Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy sets out the 

challenges and the solutions proposed by the council to help support local people.  The 

high demand for social housing and our desire to remain a landlord of high quality 

homes, means it is very important to ensure we can invest in both new social housing 

delivery and modernisation/redevelopment of existing homes. 

 

Page 53



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 44  
 

The council is working hard to mitigate the risk or rising homelessness through homeless 

prevention work and appropriate priority for homeless households on the council’s 

housing register. In April 2018 the new Homelessness Reduction Act was implemented, 

which changed the way homelessness services are provided and places additional 

duties on the council. The number of housing options cases developing from initial 

enquiries under the new legislation has increased from 24% to 78.7% as well as a 20% 

increase generally, in the number of households approaching the service for help. 

 

The government has provided two year’s Flexible Homeless Grant, which is ring fenced 

for activity which supports homeless prevention.  This funding has been utilised locally to 

provide additional resources for Housing Options and Advice, more support services for 

rough sleepers and funding of the homelessness prevention hub (in partnership with 

Citizens Advice). We have recently received confirmation that the grant has been 

extended beyond 2020. 

Social Housing Green Paper 
As referenced earlier, in the aftermath of the Grenfell Tower Block Fire the Government 

consulted on their green paper for social housing in England.  

 

Recent updates suggest that proposals to implement league tables for social housing 

providers has been abandoned (at the request of tenant representatives) however 

government are still keen on stronger use of KPI’s for accountability. Other key proposals 

though, that may still be implemented and could impact on the HRA include7: 

 

 Consideration to scrapping of the current ‘serious detriment’ test, for tougher 

consumer regulation 

 New home ownership options such as allowing tenants to buy as little as 1% of 

their property each year through shared ownership (apply to new shared 

ownership purchases only). 

 Reversal of plans to force social landlords to offer fixed term tenancies rather 

than lifetime tenancies in social housing 

 The potential introduction of a new stock transfer programme from councils to 

‘community-led’ housing associations 

 The return of guaranteed debt funding to help the development of affordable 

homes, and longer term ‘strategic partnerships’ for developing housing 

associations 

 Implementation of the Hackitt Review recommendations. 

 

                                                                        
7
 Social Housing Speed Read – Wardhadaway legal update Apr 2019 

Page 54



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 45  

The Decent Homes standard is also being revisited in terms of extending this to increase 

energy efficiency and the surrounding environment of properties. This is yet to be fully 

defined or consulted upon. 

 

Hackitt Review Consultation – Increased 

Safety and Accountability Measures 
Following the Grenfell Fire, an Independent Review of Building Regulation and Fire 

Safety was commissioned, led by Dame Judith Hackitt. This found significant failings in 

the way high-rise blocks were built and maintained, as well as resident concerns that 

were not taken seriously. 

 

Consultation is currently open on proposals stemming from this review, which will apply 

to properties lived in by multiple households and those that are 18 meters high (6 

storeys) or more. 

 

These proposals if agreed, will need to be implemented, overseen and resourced by the 

council; a significant proportion of which will be through the HRA. Proposals include:  

 

 Clear responsibly and accountability for buildings from design and build to when 

people are living in them.  

 Introduction of a new single building safety regulatory oversight of building safety 

across England. With commitment to an ‘effective way to hold them to account’ 

for non-compliance – including sanctions 

 Empowering residents by giving them the right safety information about their 

building and ensuring any views or concerns about the safety of their building are 

not be ignored. 

 The new regime would apply to significant major refurbishments and changes of 

use, and not just new buildings. 

 The fire and rescue authorities would become statutory consultees to the 

planning process.  

 Proposals for the development of an overarching competency framework for 

those working on buildings within the scope of the new regulatory regime. 

 

Increased Responsibility to Victims of 

Domestic Abuse 
Implications for the council are that there could be  

 a duty to provide more housing for more victims due to increased priority need, 

Page 55



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 46  
 

 cost and procurement of longer term housing and housing related support 

 costs of safeguarding those who want to remain in their home,  

 potential litigation costs in strengthened responsibilities to remove perpetrators of 

DA from joint tenancies.  

The full implications for resource and cost from the HRA will needs to be reviewed when 

the final outcome of the consultations is released. 

 

Brexit 
The uncertainty around the UK leaving the European Union, and particularly the 

possibility of a ‘no deal’ Brexit, carries risk for the Council generally, but there are some 

potential consequences that will be specific for housing and the HRA 

 

 There are implications for delivery on the affordable housing programme. The 

markets in London, (with a strong chance of spreading outwards) are already 

showing signs of confidence waning; a worst-case scenario prediction of a no-

deal exit triggering a full-on housing market crash, will hinder our ability to 

replenish HRA stock and keep it at target levels. 

 

 Some 60%8 of building and construction materials on average are imported from 

the EU (e.g. 92% of the UK’s softwood timber comes from Europe). This doesn’t just 

affect new build; housing department contractors are reliant on imports for 

improvements and crucial repairs including many boiler and lift systems. 

 

 The likely resulting depreciation in the pound is expected to raise the costs of 

these materials immediately, and just as concerning is the possibility of delays in 

delivery as ports become bottle necked. 

 

 The expectation of more European migrants returning to their home countries 

following Brexit, also leaves a potential skills shortage in the construction and 

building maintenance sector. 

 

The potential risks highlighted will have implications on HRA resources, costs, time 

constraints and the ability to maintain our assets. 

 

 

                                                                        
8
 CIH – Inside Housing ‘Brexit and the social housing sector: the key risks’ 26/3/2019 

Page 56



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 47  

Opportunities 
Our financial projections show a solid base, where we are able to repay all borrowing 

within a 30-year period, whilst investing in our stock, delivering new affordable homes 

but also acquiring to ensure an overall consistent number of homes available at social 

rent levels. 

 

Our priorities can be summarised into the following headings: 

 

 Improving and Maintaining Our Stock 

 Increasing the supply of housing 

 Improving Energy Efficiency and Tackling Fuel Poverty 

 Supporting Tenants 

 

Improving and maintaining our stock 
Any efficiencies can be re-invested back into the service or investment in the stock. 

 

Through our forthcoming Asset Management Strategy, a clear set of investment priorities 

will be identified and included with our Asset Management database: 

 

 Heating and Boilers 

 Kitchens 

 Bathrooms 

 Electrics 

 

The appraisal on sheltered stock has seen investment, modernisation and rationalisation 

as required. 

 

The advent of a change to the decent homes standard will also bring some challenges, 

although, as seen with sensitivity testing, a 10% increase of capital expenditure still 

provides for a viable business plan over the longer-term. 

 

However, with the additional resources available we could consider other options to 

utilise additional borrowing and future revenue surpluses as they accrue. These options 

are discussed below: 

 

Increasing supply 
As identified in our Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, it is our 

objective to continue to deliver more affordable homes. We have already embarked 

on delivering new HRA homes and are forecast to utilise available resources such as 

Page 57



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 48  
 

right to buy receipts that have been accrued to date and from future estimated sales.  

However we don’t have certainty about the availability of this funding going forward 

and we must ensure we are considering other funding opportunities and options. 

 

We will consider alternative subsidies, such as grants from Homes England, to build on 

the level of stock assumed in our plan. 

 

Furthermore, we could in the future, consider estate regeneration of existing sites within 

our HRA that give potential to increase density and provide more affordable homes. 

 

In summary our business plan demonstrates that we have borrowing capacity as future 

revenue streams enable debt repayment on current forecast levels of debt. 

 

Energy Efficiency & Tackling Fuel Poverty 
 

Councillors agreed to declare a climate emergency in the summer of 2019 and a 

strategy and action plan is currently being developed with the aim of making Welwyn 

Hatfield carbon neutral by 2030. 

 

The council will look at opportunities to ensure that its housing stock is helping to 

achieve this goal.  As already highlighted, the revisit of the decent homes standard may 

well make the issue of energy efficiency a statutory one. 

 

We have been proactive in installing PV solar panels to tenants’ properties to assist with 

energy costs, where previous Government incentives provided for this. 

 

Further improvements to properties over and above our assumed costings could 

include: 

 

 Thermostatic showers above baths 

 Redecoration of properties after major works – to the affected areas 

 Environmental improvements such as: 

o Replacing and Implementing Fencing for all gardens. 

o Door entry and improved security to blocks of flats 

o Relaying of boundary walls. 

o Providing an annual ‘community chest’ in which tenants bid for estate 

improvement work. 

 

Page 58



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 49  

As identified above, the HRA could sustain additional borrowing in order to fund these 

improvements.  Consideration is also being given to the council’s approach to the 

potential change to electric boilers – both within existing stock and as part of our 

redevelopment programme, as well as the exploration of other innovative solutions to 

help improve energy efficiency. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Governance 
 

Cabinet Housing Panel 
The HRA business plan is monitored by the Cabinet Housing Panel. This Panel is made up 

of 10 elected council members one independent members and two tenant panel 

members. Reporting into the council’s Cabinet, it is responsible for consideration of 

strategies, policies, plans (including HRA) and matters relating to housing, and for 

making recommendations to the Cabinet.  

 
 

Cabinet 
The Cabinet, also known as the Executive, is a group of councillors who will take most of 

the decisions about what the Council does. It is made up of seven councillors from the 

majority political group, chaired by the Leader of the Council and meets on a regular 

basis, providing leadership at a top level.  The Executive Member for Housing and 

Community holds the housing portfolio and is the lead member for all social housing 

matters. 

 

The Cabinet is responsible for approving the HRA business plan and taking decisions on 

major changes or significant financial matters relevant to the plan. 

 

Part 9 
Governance, Communication 
and Tenant Involvement 

Page 59



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 50  
 

 

 

 

 

Tenant Engagement 
 

Tenants Panel 
The Council has had an active Tenants' Panel, since 1994. It is an independent, non-

political organisation made up of tenants and leaseholders from a variety of 

backgrounds to represent tenants and leaseholders. 

 

Panel members are elected through a postal ballot of all tenants and leaseholders 

every two years. Meetings are held every two months and are open to the public. 

 

 
 

The Panel monitors the council’s performance and discusses housing and other local 

issues with sub groups.  

 

Tenant Panel Sub-Groups  
The Tenants' Panel is split into sub-groups in order to focus on specific matters that are 

regularly discussed during full Tenants' Panel meetings.  

 

The four sub-groups cover:  

 

 Communications 

 Scrutiny 

Their remit is to: 

 Create an effective relationship between the 

Council, tenants and leaseholders 

 Protect tenants’ rights 

 Raise standards and improve services 

 Ensure services meet the needs of the local 

community 

 

Page 60



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 51  

 Governance 

 Environment 

 

Agendas and minutes are produced and each group reports back to the wider panel 

on their activities. Two members of the panel are also invited to sit on the four Council 

Committees that make recommendations and decisions on those four specified areas. 

 

 

 

Customer Service Strategy 
The Council launched its customer service strategy, in April 2018. The Strategy puts the 

needs of the customer at the heart of its priorities for service delivery and 

communication. There is a renewed focus on customer insight to help design and 

improve services. Revised customer service standards and accountability. Improved 

accessibility to services through extended use of the contact centre and new online 

digital models. 

 

 

Communication and Consultation 
The Council communicates and engages in many different ways with the community as 

a whole, but housing additionally have an in-house community engagement team who 

communicate specifically with our tenants and leaseholders using a number of medium  

  

 

As our business transformation continues to embed, we anticipate the involvement of 

tenants panel and scrutiny of services to gather momentum and are setting a target for 

the number of services scrutinised (at team level), doing more work on customer insight 

and profiling as well as proactively encouraging tenants and leaseholder to help shape 

our services.  

 

  

Page 61



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 
 

 

 

 
Update targets for 19/20 

PI 
Number 

Description Current Target Current 
Tolerance 

Collection Frequency 

29 
The maximum number of households living in temporary 
accommodation in the borough (where the council have a duty) 

75 80 Quarterly 

48 
The total number of properties in the Delivery Pipeline (affordable 
Housing Delivery Strategy) 

500 450 Annually 

New Housing Needs Register applications assessed within 28 days 95.00% 90.00% Quarterly 

PI 
Number 

Description 
Current Target Current Tolerance Collection Frequency 

35 Current council tenant arrears as a percentage of the annual rent 
debit 

1.60% 1.80% Quarterly 

36 Number of council tenant evictions due to rent arrears as a 
percentage of council rented stock managed 

0.30% 0.40% Quarterly 

37 The average void property re-let time for standard general needs 
council homes in days 

18 days 20 Days Quarterly 

38 The average time in minutes for a mobile warden to attend an 
address in response to an Emergency Alarm call from the resident 

12 mins 13 Mins Quarterly 

New Total number of customers involved in tenant engagement activities 
(stepped quarterly) 

400 375 Quarterly 

PI 
Number 

Description 
Current Target Current Tolerance Collection Frequency 

31 The percentage of housing repairs where work was completed right 
first time 

90% 88% Quarterly 

32 The percentage of housing repairs appointments made and kept 95% 92% Quarterly 

Appendix A  
Part 6: Key Performance Indicators 
 

P
age 62



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 53  

33 The percentage of council tenants ‘satisfied’ overall with the 
responsive repairs service provided (based on the last repair 
completed) 

92% 90% Quarterly 

34 The percentage of council properties with a valid gas safety 
certificate 

100% 100% Quarterly 

47 The level of non-decent council homes as a percentage of all council 
homes 

0.00% 0.00% Annually 

New % of all Responsive Repairs completed in target 95% 92% Quarterly 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 63



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 
 

 

 

 
  1 2 3 4 5 ~ 30 

  2019.20 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 ~ 2048.49 

  £'000's £'000's £'000's £'000's £'000's ~ £'000's 

HRA 30 YEAR SUMMARY           ~   

Dwelling rents 48,640 49,175 50,653 52,879 55,045 ~ 94,243 

Non-dwelling rents 541 551 562 573 584 ~ 584 

Service charge income 2,556 2,622 2,674 2,727 2,782 ~ 2,782 

Other income and contributions 260 453 462 471 480 ~ 480 

Total income 51,997 52,801 54,351 56,650 58,891 ~ 98,089 

       ~  

Repairs & maintenance 9,474 9,687 9,881 10,079 10,281 ~ 17,537 

Supervision and Management  13,551 13,866 14,142 14,424 14,712 ~ 14,712 

Bad debts 500 492 507 529 550 ~ 973 

Depreciation 14,777 15,440 15,749 16,064 16,385 ~ 27,726 

Other expenditure  39 28 29 30 31 ~ 49 

Total costs 38,341 39,513 40,308 41,126 41,960 ~ 60,997 

       ~  

Net income from services 13,656 13,288 14,043 15,524 16,932 ~ 37,093 

       ~  

Interest payable -6,270 -6,374 -6,745 -7,100 -7,048 ~ 0 

Interest income 89 163 162 163 165 ~ 1,757 

Net income/expenditure before 
reserve and capital movements 

7,474 7,078 7,460 8,587 10,048 ~ 38,850 

       ~  

Revenue contributions to capital -7,383 -7,230 -7,383 -8,474 -9,937 ~ -18,440 

Net HRA Surplus/Deficit  91 -152 77 113 111 ~ 20,410 

       ~  

HRA Balance brought forward 2,597 2,688 2,536 2,613 2,726 ~ 171,715 

HRA surplus/deficit 91 -152 77 113 111 ~ 20,410 

HRA Balance carried forward 2,688 2,536 2,613 2,726 2,838 ~ 192,125 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Part 7: HRA Revenue Forecasts 

Page 64



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 55  

 

 

 

 
  1 2 3 4 5 ~ 30 

  2019.20 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 ~ 2048.49 

  £'000's £'000's £'000's £'000's £'000's ~ £'000's 

            ~   

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME           ~   

            ~   

Investment in current stock 10,844 13,586 10,382 10,655 10,936 ~ 46,165 

Other Improvements 6 500 450 445 125 ~ 0 

Development and Acquisition 12,511 23,171 32,000 17,000 6,000 ~ 0 

Debt Repayment 18,800 20,000 21,400 22,700 24,200 ~ 0 

Financing Requirement 42,162 57,257 64,232 50,800 41,261 ~ 46,165 

Financed by...           ~   

Major Repairs Reserve -14,777 -15,440 -15,749 -16,064 -16,385 ~ -27,725 

1-4-1 receipts -4,093 -6,951 -9,600 -5,100 -1,800 ~ 0 

Other receipts and grants -612 -11,124 -450 -1,454 -1,402 ~ 0 

Revenue contributions -7,383 -7,229 -7,383 -8,474 -9,937 ~ -18,440 

HRA borrowing -15,296 -16,512 -31,050 -19,708 -11,737 ~ 0 

Capital financing -42,162 57,257 -64,232 -50,800 -41,261 ~ -46,165 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 

Part 5: Financing the Capital Programme 

Page 65



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 56  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Completed Development Schemes (Housing Revenue Account) 2012-2018 

Scheme Number 

Open Market Purchases 158 

Council New Build – Furzen Crescent 7 

Council New Build  - Garden Avenue 22 

Acquisition – Inspira House 54 

Council New Build – Northdown Road 16 

Council New Build – Little Mead 7 

Total 231 

 

 

Schemes Underway (Housing Revenue Account)  

Scheme Number 

Open Market Purchase (by March 2020) 20 

Council New Build - Chequersfield 12 

Council New Build – The Commons 4 

Council New build – Ludwick Way 6 

Council New build – Minster House 90 

Council New Build – Howlands House 72 

Council New Build – Burfield Close 45 

Council New Build – Ludwick Green 15 

Council New Build (phase three garage sites) 13 

Total 277 

 

Future Schemes (feasibility underway) 145 

 

Appendix D 

Part 5: Developing Affordable Homes  

Page 66



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Main author: Tony Bullimore 
Executive Member: Nick Pace 
Wards: All 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 15TH JANUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 

 

PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR HOUSING PERIOD QTR TWO - 2019-20 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The attached report provides a summary of the strategic Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs), and comments about performance by exception. The KPIs are 
monitored monthly by Heads of Service. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 It is recommended that the Panel note the contents of the attached report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The KPIs being reported, as shown in Appendix A, are the corporate KPI’s 
published in the council’s Action Plan for 2019/20.  

3.2 The first part of the report shows the results for each KPI and how performance 
compares against target and tolerance. Each result is assessed and highlighted 
either as red, amber or green.  

3.3 The second part includes comments by exception, relating to any KPIs 
highlighted as either red or amber. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 All controls are in place to manage legal implications. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no new financial implications as a result of this report. Robust arrears 
management is essential in maximising income.  

6 Risk Management Implication(s) 

6.1 No new risks identified. All controls are in place.  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The Decent Homes standard for council housing stock and private sector 
housing directly affect climate change and are monitored within these KPIs.     

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no human resources implications arising from this report 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Several of the KPIs impact on the wellbeing of housing applicants, Lifeline 
customers and tenants. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 Performance information is reviewed by the Tenants Panel, and communicated 
with customers through Your Voice newsletter. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 Each of the KPIs is a corporate published KPI and include the corresponding 
reference used for performance clinic reports. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection 
with the proposals that are set out in this report as the recommendation does 
not require a policy or service change. 

 

 
Name of author Lucy Aston 
Title Business Excellence Team 
Date 06/01/2020 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 
 

 

  

Appendix A

Service 

area

BPI Ref Description Last Note
Target Tol Q1 Q2 Method

Source 

value
YTD

Last 

year

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

BPI 30 The number of Decent 

Home assessments 

undertaken in 

properties in the 

Private Sector

The number of assessments will vary according to the amount of 

reactive and programmed inspections compared to the degree 

of proactive work to identify and confirm suspected HMO’s. The 

amount of reactive and programmed work has been lower than 

expected this year; mainly due to fewer than expected 

applications for HMO licences. The team are currently 

undertaking a targeted pro-active ‘door knocking’ exercise in an 

attempt to identify unlicensed HMOs. The proactive project 

started in August this year was focused in the Knightsfield area 

of Welwyn Garden City and to date we have knocked on 741. 

Although this did not directly produce any unlicensed HMO's 

directly we generated Disabled Facilities Grant enquiries and 

raised the profile of the project via our communications team. 

There has been ten new applications for HMO licenses since 

August 2019 when this campaign started. We are now in the 

process of completing stage two concentrating around the QE11 

hospital. Once we have finished this geographical area we will 

carry out an evaluation of our strategy. The total number of new 

license applications received since the change in the Law last 

October is 266, 10 of which have been received after the 

beginning of our campaign.

200 180 214 158

N
u
m

b
e
r

158 372 136

Totals

P
age 69



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

  

Service 

area

BPI Ref Description Last Note
Target Tol Q1 Q2 Method

Source 

value
YTD

Last 

year

BPI 29 The total number of 

households living in 

temporary 

accommodation in the 

borough (where the 

council have a duty)

Levels of temporary accommodation use continue to exceed 

desirable levels, but sustained period without the need for hotel 

use has been welcome. The post of temporary accommodation 

manager has now been occupied by Steph Beechey for over 6 

months and this has led to a clear process for the allocation of 

accommodation and swift turnaround of void units to ensure that 

accommodation is available when needed. Recently more focus 

on prioritising homeless decisions will also lead to faster move 

ons out of TA.

75 80 115 120

N
u
m

b
e
r

120 120 117

BPI 63 The percentage of 

people who have a 

suitable Housing 

Support Plan agreed 

within the target time, 

once the Prevention 

Duty is triggered under 

the Homeless 

Reduction Act

The target has been reached for all 3 months and quarter 3 had 

97.1% rate of completion. 11 of last 13 months achieved. IT 

upgrade is now used for all PHPs and this provides a better 

outcome for customers and easier provision of targeted advice 

for officers new methods well received by team.
95 90 96.4 95.6 % 174 95.6 54.3

BPI 65 Housing Needs 

Register applications 

assessed within 28 

days

Performance has improved since the last quarter and is well 

above the target of 95%. Closer monitoring will be introduced to 

ensure all teams work together to ensure customers do not 

experience delays with any part of the process.

95 90 95.70 99.35 % 456 99.35 n/a

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

P
age 70



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

  

Service 

area

BPI Ref Description Last Note
Target Tol Q1 Q2 Method

Source 

value
YTD

Last 

year

BPI 35 Current council tenant 

arrears as a 

percentage of the 

annual rent debit

Q2 - Performance currently 2.41%, slightly above end of year 

target of 2.20%.  This however is a big improvement compared 

to the same period last year at 2.78%, representing a cash 

reduction of £172K.  The team continue to work closely with our 

residents and support them making sure they can sustain their 

tenancies and this is demonstrated by a lower number of 

evictions compared to last year. Universal credit cases continue 

to increase, currently we have 1289 cases, an increase 562 at 

the same period last year.

2.2 2.4 2.10 2.41 % 1,197,229 2.41 2.78

BPI 36 Number of evictions 

(due to rent arrears) as 

% of homes in 

management (YTD)

Q2 - There were eight evictions (0.09%) for non payment of rent 

carried out during the second quarter, three less than for the 

same period last year (0.12%).  Year to date we have carried 

out 12 evictions, again a reduction of three compared to 

2018/19 YTD.  We continue to support our residents and take 

action as a last resort and this shows in the reduction of 

evictions taken place.

0.30 0.20 0.05 0.09 % 12 0.14 0.16

BPI 37 The average void 

property re-let time for 

standard general needs 

council homes in days 

(YTD)

Q2 - Void relet performance has improved considerably through 

Q2 with a 16 day  and 16.4 day turnaround in August and 

September respectively.  YTD performance is 17.9 days and 

within target. This is testament to the hard work that has been put 

in to review and implement efficiencies in the process from 

housing maintenance, neighbourhoods and allocations.

18 20 19.4 16.4

N
u
m

b
e
r

51 17.9 19.6

BPI 38 The average time for a 

mobile warden to 

attend an address in 

response to an 

emergency alarm call 

from a resident (YTD)

Q2 performance delivered average response time of 10.57 

minutes and within the target of 12 minutes. The total calls 

carried out within the period is 327.
12 13 10.47 10.57

N
u
m

b
e
r

327 10.52 10.10

BPI 67 The number of 

customers involved in 

tenant engagement 

activities

This quarter we exceeded target due to working in partnership 

with the Interfaith Group to deliver a 'Peace Gathering' event on 

the UN's International Day of Peace which attracted around 100 

people on the day.

200 150 113 264

N
u
m

b
e
r

377 377 0

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

P
age 71



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Service 

area

BPI Ref Description Last Note
Target Tol Q1 Q2 Method

Source 

value
YTD

Last 

year

BPI 31 The percentage of 

housing repairs where 

the work is completed 

right first time

Performance remains strong with results at 7.45% above target. 

3,840 jobs were carried out in the quarter with 3,742 jobs 

completed right first time. This PI measures all urgent and 

routine jobs including jobs where wet works are carried out or 

scaffolding is required, so we would expect that a small 

proportion of jobs are unable to be completed with one visit.

90 88 96.9 97.5 % 3742 97.15 0

BPI 33 The percentage of 

council tenants 

‘satisfied’ overall with 

the responsive repairs 

service provided 

(based on the last 

repair completed)

1,683 surveys were sent out in quarter two. 336 surveys were 

returned (response rate 20%) and 312 were satisfied with the 

service provided. 

This PI is above target. The performance of this Partnership PI 

is monitored closely and any trends or issues identified are 

addressed with both customer and our contractors to enable 

continuous service improvement.

92 90 93.3 92.9 % 312 93.04 90.2

BPI 34 The percentage of 

council properties with 

a valid gas safety 

certificate

At the end of Quarter two out of the 8,808 properties with a gas 

supply, 8,806 held a valid and in date gas safety certificates. 

The 2 properties that were non-compliant were referred to the 

council legal team who secured court injunctions to gain access. 

This was effected and these 2 properties were brought back into 

compliance Fri 4th October 2019. At the time of writing this 

report we were 100% compliant.

100 100 99.97 99.98 % 8806 99.97 100

BPI 66 The percentage of all 

responsive repairs 

completed in target

Out of the 5,474 jobs in the quarter, all responsive repairs were 

kept completed within target time. 95 92 100 100 % 5474 99.98 0

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
age 72



Classification: Unrestricted 

CABINET HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

DATE OF 
MEETING  

REPORTS  REPORT AUTHORS 
SERVICE AREAS 

19 February 2020  Tenancy Fraud 
 

 Quarter 3 KPIs 2019/20 
 

Kerry Clifford 
 
All 

8 April 2020  Mutual Exchange Policy 
 

 Succession Policy 
 

Kerry Clifford 
 
Kerry Clifford 

 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUSINESS PLAN
	Item 8 Appendix A HRA Business Plan 12 19

	9 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR HOUSING PERIOD QUARTER TWO - 2019/20
	12 WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

